FILEY
Jun 10, 2014
Court of Appeals
Division I
State of Washington

Supreme Court No. $\frac{90378 - 6}{69743-9-1}$

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

STATE OF WASHINGTON,

Respondent,

٧.

VADIM FEDEROV,

Petitioner.

PETITION FOR REVIEW



DAVID L. DONNAN Attorney for Petitioner

WASHINGTON APPELLATE PROJECT
701 Melbourne Tower
1511 Third Avenue
Seattle, Washington 98101
(206) 587-2711

A. IDENTITY OF PETITIONER

Petitioner, VADIM FEDEROV, asks this Court to accept review of the Court of Appeals decision terminating review designated in Part B of this petition pursuant to RAP 13.4(b)(2), (3), and (4).

B. <u>DECISION BELOW</u>

Petitioner seeks review of the published opinion of the Court of Appeals, Division One, dated May 12, 2014, which affirmed conviction for second degree identity theft. A copy of the Court's slip opinion is attached as Appendix A.

C. ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW

- 1. Whether the State presented sufficient evidence to find that Mr. Federov committed second degree identity theft when he repeatedly gave a name and date of birth that did not correspond to any real person in the Judicial Information System and gave no indication that he knew that Zachary Anderson, date of birth August 30, 1984 is a real person. RAP 13.4(b)(2).
- 2. Whether the specific underlying crime is an essential element of the second degree identity theft statute that must be included in the "to convict" instruction. RAP 13.4(b)(3), (4).
- 3. Whether "abiding belief in the truth" language in the jury's reasonable doubt jury instruction improperly led the jury to believe that its

role was to find the truth in the case, not evaluate the whether the State proved its case beyond a reasonable doubt. RAP 13.4(b)(3), (4).

D. STATEMENT OF THE CASE

While driving through north Everett, Mr. Federov was pulled over for speeding. He was unable to produce a driver's license, vehicle registration, or automobile insurance. RP 105-07. When asked for his name and date of birth by the officer, Mr. Federov stated his name as Zachary Anderson, date of birth of August 31, 1984. RP 109. A record check performed by the officer did not reveal any Washington drivers with the name and date of birth provided by Mr. Federov, although it did disclose a Zachary Anderson born August 30, 1984, with multiple outstanding warrants. RP 109-11. When the officer again questioned Mr. Federov about his date of birth, he continued to insist his birthdate was August 31, 1984. Despite Mr. Federov's protests and the discrepancy in dates of birth, Mr. Federov was arrested on the outstanding warrants of Zachary Anderson, dob 8/30/1984. RP 111.

Mr. Federov maintained he was Zachary Anderson, date of birth

¹ The record on appeal includes three volumes of transcripts. The CrR 3.5 hearing is found in the verbatim report of proceedings dated December 6, 2012, and will be cited as 12/6/12RP. The trial is found in a single volume representing December 18-19, 2012, and will be cited simply as RP. The sentencing on December 20, 2012, is not otherwise referenced herein.

August 31, 1984, throughout the jailhouse booking procedure. RP 129, 132. After being badgered on the issue, he ultimately capitulated and stated his date of birth was August 30, 2014. RP 112. Due to the questions concerning his identity, Mr. Federov was fingerprinted and consequently identified as Vadim Fedorov. RP 133-34. Mr. Federov was charged with second degree identity theft under RCW 9.35.020.²

On appeal Mr. Federov contended, <u>inter alia</u>, that the evidence presented by the prosecution was insufficient to find him guilty of identity theft in the second degree, that the "to convict" jury instructions omitted an essential element of the crime of identity theft by failing to specify the underlying crime Mr. Federov intended to commit, and that the "abiding belief" jury instruction undercut the State's burden of proof by equating the jury's job with a search for the truth. Division One affirmed his conviction. As set forth below, Mr. Federov seeks review.

E. ARGUMENT

1. THE STATE FAILED TO PRESENT SUFFICIENT EVIDENCE TO PROVE THAT MR. FEDEROV KNOWINGLY MISUSED THE IDENTITY OF A REAL PERSON WITH THE INTENT TO COMMIT A CRIME.

² In relevant part, RCW 9.35.020 states:

⁽¹⁾ No person may knowingly obtain, possess, use, or transfer a means of identification or financial information of another person, living or dead, with the intent to commit, or to aid or abet, any crime.

Due Process requires the State to prove all essential elements of a crime beyond a reasonable doubt. U.S. Const. amend. XIV; Const. art. I, §§ 3, 22; In re Winship, 397 U.S. 358, 364, 90 S.Ct. 1068, 25 L.Ed.2d 368 (1970); State v. Baeza, 100 Wn.2d 487, 490, 670 P.2d 646 (1983). Evidence of a crime is insufficient, and the State fails to meet its burden of proof, when, viewed in a light most favorable to the state, no rational trier of fact could find all essential elements of the crime were proved beyond a reasonable doubt. Jackson v. Virginia, 443 U.S. 307, 319, 99 S.Ct. 2781, 61 L.Ed.2d 560 (1979); State v. Green, 94 Wn.2d 216, 220-21, 616 P.2d 628 (1980).

a. There is insufficient evidence to show that Mr. Federov used the name and date of birth of a specific real person. The Washington identity theft statute requires that a defendant use the identity of a specific real person with intent to commit a crime. State v. Evans, 177 Wn.2d 186, 196, 298 P.3d 724 (2013) ("[A] victim of identity theft must be 'another person, living or dead.'"); see also State v. Berry, 129 Wn.App. 59, 62, 117 P.3d 1162 (2005). Merely providing a false name does not constitute identity theft because the statute is intended to protect real people from financial and other harms. See Evans, 177 Wn.2d at 199-204 (discussing legislative history of identity theft statute).

Division One incorrectly concluded that Mr. Federov used the identity of a real person because he repeatedly asserted that he was Zachary Anderson, dob August 31, 1984, a name and date of birth that does not belong to any individual in the Judicial Information System (JIS). RP 148-50. Mr. Federov insisted on multiple occasions that his date of birth was August 31, 1984 and maintained his birthdate was August 31 even when the arresting officer specifically tried to persuade him to admit it was August 30, 1984. RP 109, 117-18, 132. Providing a false name and date of birth when pulled over for speeding was not a violation of the Washington identity theft statute requiring the defendant to misuse the identity of another real person. See Evans, 117 Wn.2d at 196; Berry, 129 Wn.App. at 62. Although Mr. Federov did state once that he was born on August 30th at the jail, this statement only came after he had repeatedly denied that his birth date was August 30th, even when directly questioned by the arresting officer. RP 116-17, 119, 132. Because Mr. Federov asserted and maintained he was Zachary Anderson, date of birth August 31, 1984, characteristics not matching anyone in the JIS, no reasonable trier of fact could have found, beyond a reasonable doubt, that he used the identity of another real person with the intent to commit a crime.

b. There is insufficient evidence to show that Mr. Federov knowingly used the name and date of birth of a real person. Conviction for

identity theft requires a mens rea of knowledge showing that the defendant knew the "means of identification" belonged to another person. State v.

Zeferino-Lopez, — Wn.App. —, 319 P.3d 94, 96-97 (2014) ("[T]he element of knowledge in second degree identity theft . . . also refers to [the defendant's] knowledge that [a means of identification] was 'a means of identification or financial information of another person, living or dead." (quoting RCW 9.35.020)); see also Flores-Figueroa v. U.S., 556 U.S. 646, 650, 129 S.Ct. 1886, 173 L.Ed.2d 853 (2009) (finding "knowingly" in similarly phrased federal statute applies to "all the subsequently listed elements of the crime," including that a means of identification belongs to another person). Using a false name without knowing that the identifying information belongs to another person does not constitute identity theft.

See Zeferino-Lopez, 319 P.3d at 97-98.

Division One's decision upholding Mr. Federov's conviction for identity theft is in direct conflict with that Court's holding in Zeferino-Lopez. In Zeferino-Lopez, Division One found that a defendant who purchased a counterfeit social security card containing a social security number belonging to a real person was not guilty of identity theft because he did not know the number on the card belonged to a real person. Id. at 98. Mr. Federov likewise gave no indication that he knew that the name and date of birth he provided to the officer corresponded to a real person.

Further, the name and date of birth he gave did not match anyone in the JIS and he expressly denied that he was Zachary Anderson, date of birth August 30, 1984. RP 116-17. As in Zeferino-Lopez, where the state failed to show that the defendant knowingly used a means of identification belonging to another person, an element of the crime of identity theft, the state here did not meet its burden of proving that Mr. Federov knew that the name and date of birth he provided to the arresting officer belonged to another person. 319 P.3d at 97-98.

Division One correctly found in Zeferino-Lopez that knowledge that a means of identification actually belongs to another person is an element of the crime of identity theft. The ordinary understanding when knowingly is used before a verb is that it modifies both the verb and any objects of the verb. See Flores-Figueroa, 556 U.S. at 650 ("In ordinary English, where a transitive verb has an object, listeners in most contexts assumes that an adverb (such as knowingly) that modifies the transitive verb tells the listener how the subject performed the entire action, including the object as set forth in the sentence."); See id. at 650-53 (discussing examples in ordinary English understanding of modifiers of transitive verbs); State v. Killingsworth, 166 Wn.App. 283, 289, 269 P.3d 1064 (2012) (finding to convict instruction "knowingly trafficked in stolen property" requires showing defendant knowingly trafficked and that the

property was stolen). Because knowingly modifies use, a transitive verb, in the identity theft statute, it "also refers to [a person's] knowledge that it was 'a means of identification or financial information of another person, living or dead.'" Zeferino-Lopez, 319 P.3d at 97.

2. FAILING TO SPECIFY THE UNDERLYING CRIME IN THE "TO CONVICT" INSTRUCTIONS VIOLATED MR. FEDEROV'S CONSTITUTIONAL DUE PROCESS RIGHTS.

Constitutional due process requires the State to prove every essential element of a crime beyond a reasonable doubt. U.S. Const. amend. XIV; Const. art. I, §§ 3, 22; In re Winship, 397 U.S. at 364; State v. Lord, 117 Wn.2d 829, 876, 822 P.2d 177 (1991). Jury instructions, therefore, must inform the jury of the applicable law, detailing every essential element of the alleged crime, and inform the jury of the State's burden of proving every element beyond a reasonable doubt. State v. Byrd, 125 Wn.2d 707, 713-14, 887 P.2d 396 (1995); State v. Bennett, 161 Wn.2d 303, 307, 165 P.3d 1241 (2007).

A "to-convict" instruction is insufficient if it does not specify all the essential elements of a crime. State v. DeRyke, 149 Wn.2d 906, 910, 73 P.3d 1000 (2003). An incomplete "to-convict" instruction is unconstitutional because it leaves the jury "guess[ing] at the meaning of an essential element of a crime or . . . assum[ing] that an essential element need not be proved." State v. Smith, 131 Wn.2d 258, 263, 930 P.2d 917

(1997); State v. Mills, 154 Wn.2d 1, 6, 109 P.3d 415 (2005) ("The 'to convict' instruction carries with it a special weight because the jury treats the instruction as a 'yardstick' by which to measure a defendant's guilt or innocence."). The unconstitutionality of jury instructions lacking an essential element has been affirmed by this Court numerous times. See State v. Sibert, 168 Wn.2d 306, 328, 230 P.3d 142 (2010). The Court "review[s] a challenged jury instruction de novo, evaluating it in the context of the instructions as a whole. State v. Pirtle, 127 Wn.2d 628, 656, 904 P.2d 245 (1995); State v. Brett, 126 Wn.2d 136, 892 P.2d 29 (1995).

a. Division One erred in finding that the underlying offense is not an essential element of second degree identity theft. In order for the jury to be adequately instructed on the crime of identity theft, "to convict" instructions must contain the underlying crime the defendant intended to commit. Second degree identity theft occurs when a person "knowingly obtain[s], possess[es], use[s], or transfer[s] a means of identification or financial information of another person, living or dead, with the intent to commit, or to aid or abet, any crime." RCW 9.35.020 (1), (3).³

The underlying crime is an essential element of identity theft

³ RCW 9.35.020(1) defines the underlying elements of identity theft in the first and second degree. First degree identity theft is distinguished from second degree by the value of the money, goods, etc. obtained, i.e., greater than \$1500. RCW 9.35.020 (2), (3).

because a jury finding that the defendant acted with the intent to commit
"a crime" is constitutionally inadequate. To find that a defendant
committed identity theft, the jury must find that he improperly used
someone's identity with the intent to commit a specific crime, not crime
per se. See State v. DeRyke, 149 Wn.2d 906, 913, 73 P.3d 1000 (2003)
("It is elementary that a person cannot be convicted of rape per se, but
only of a specific degree of rape."). By not specifying the specific crime
Mr. Federov acted with the intent to commit, the jury is not fully informed
on what the state must prove for an individual to be guilty of identity theft.
State v. Oster, 147 Wn.2d 141, 146, 52 P.3d 26 (2002). They are
inadequately educated on the applicable law and left guessing as to what
actions constitute "any crime" under Washington law. Smith, 131 Wn.2d
at 263.

Division One has previously found that an underlying crime is an essential element in a criminal prosecution. Murder in the second degree occurs when a person commits or attempts to commit a felony and causes the death of another person in the commission of the felony or flight therefrom. RCW 9A.32.050(1)(b). The underlying felony is an essential element of murder in the second degree. State v. Bryant, 65 Wn.App. 428, 438, 828 P.2d 1121 (1992). Although the Court's pronouncement in Bryant arose in a discussion of the adequacy of the charging document,

the distinction is immaterial because both the jury instructions and the charging document must contain all the essential elements of the crime.

State v. McCarty, 140 Wn.2d 420, 426 n.1, 998 P.2d 296 (2000) ("[S]ince both charging documents and jury instructions must identify the essential elements of the crime for which the defendant is charged (information) and tried (jury instructions), the dissent's distinction is without a difference.").

b. Division One applied this Court's holding in *Bergeron* beyond the scope of this Court's decision in that case. Division One incorrectly applied this Court's holding in <u>State v. Bergeron</u> because the Court's holding in that case is limited to burglary prosecutions. In <u>Bergeron</u>, this court found that, for burglary, it is not necessary to include the underlying crime in the jury instructions or the charging document. 105 Wn.2d 1, 15, 711 P.2d 1000 (1985). As Division One notes, identity theft, like burglary, is a statutory offense, slip op. at 10, and both statutes require a showing that the defendant acted with the intent to commit a crime. <u>Compare</u> RCW 9A.52.020 with RCW 9.35.020. But the burglary statute is unique in that it allows the jury to infer that if a defendant in a burglary prosecution was found to be unlawfully within a building, he was there with the intent to commit a crime. RCW 9A.52.040; <u>Bergeron</u>, 105 Wn.2d at 13-14 n.30; <u>State v. Jackson</u>, 112 Wn.2d 867, 875, 774 P.2d 1211 (1989) ("RCW

9A.52.030 provides that a burglary may be inferred (intent exists) if one either unlawfully remains upon another's premises or an entry occurs."). It is unnecessary to instruct the jury on the underlying crime in a burglary prosecution because jurors can infer from the defendant's mere unlawful presence within a building that he was there with the intent to commit a crime. See State v. Bunson, 128 Wn.2d 98, 105, 905 P.2d 346 (1995) (stating RCW 9A.52.030 was adopted by legislature to clarify proof of intent to commit a crime). Because there is no comparable inference of intent in the identity theft statute, jurors must be instructed on and find that the defendant acted with the intent to commit a specific crime to satisfy the intent prong of the identity theft statute. DeRyke, 149 Wn.2d at 913.

3. EQUATING BELIEF BEYOND A REASONABLE DOUBT WITH "AN ABIDING BELIEF IN THE TRUTH OF THE CHARGE" IN THE JURY INSTRUCTIONS IMPROPERLY INSTRUCTED THE JURY ON THEIR ROLE AND VIOLATED MR. FEDEROV'S CONSTITUTIONAL DUE PROCESS RIGHTS.

The role of the jury is to test whether the prosecution has met its burden of proof, not to search for the truth. State v. Emery, 174 Wn.2d 741, 760, 278 P.3d 653 (2012). In order to fulfill this role, the jury must be informed of the State's burden of proving every essential element of a crime beyond a reasonable doubt. In re Winship, 397 U.S. at 363. If the jury is not also properly instructed on what constitutes reasonable doubt,

the State is relieved of its burden and the presumption of innocence that underlies the criminal justice system is "washed away." State v. Bennett, 161 Wn.2d 303, 315-16, 165 P.3d 1241 (2007) ("The presumption of innocence can be diluted and even washed away if reasonable doubt is defined so as to be illusive or too difficult to achieve."). The court must vigilantly protect the presumption of innocence to maintain the integrity of the criminal justice system. <u>Id.</u>

By equating proof beyond a reasonable doubt with "an abiding belief in the truth," the WPIC 4.01 jury instructions mischaracterized the crucial role of the jury. The "abiding belief in the truth" language is "improper because [it] suggests that the jury's role is to solve the case." State v. Emery, 174 Wn.2d 741, 760, 278 P.3d 653 (2012). The role of the jury is not to determine the truth of the State's claims, but to assess whether the State has met its burden of proving its case beyond a reasonable doubt. Id. Equating the jury's role with a search for truth misstates and trivializes the burden of proof that must be met by the State. State v. Lindsay. No. 88437-4, 2014 WL 1848454, at *7-8 (Wash. May 8, 2014).

This Court's decision in <u>State v. Pirtle</u> is not controlling because the Court did not address whether WPIC 4.01's "abiding belief in the truth" language mischaracterizes the role of the jury. Although this court

upheld the "abiding belief in the truth" language in WPIC 4.01 in <u>Pirtle</u>, it did so on grounds that it "does not diminish the definition of reasonable doubt given in the first two sentences, but neither does it add anything of substance to WPIC 4.01." 127 Wn.2d 628, 658, 904 P.2d 245 (1995). In doing so, the Court did not address whether the language encourages the jury to view its role as a search for truth rather than evaluation of the case presented by the State. <u>Id.</u> The definition of reasonable doubt in the jury instructions is irrelevant if the jury does not understand its role as applying that standard in evaluating the State's case. <u>See Emery</u>, 174 Wn.2d at 760.

This Court's holding in <u>Bennett</u> is also not controlling in this case because the Court did not address the "abiding belief in the truth" language in WPIC 4.01 in that case. In <u>Bennett</u>, this Court found the reasonable doubt instruction derived from <u>State v. Castle</u>, 86 Wn.App. 48, 935 P.2d 656 (1997) to be inaccurate and misleading. 161 Wn.2d at 317-18. The Court directed trial courts to use WPIC 4.01 "until a better instruction is approved" without further comment on the language of WPIC 4.01. <u>Id.</u> at 318.

Although this Court directed trial courts to use WPIC 4.01, this Court has since found language similar to the "abiding belief in the truth" language of WPIC 4.01 to be problematic. In Emery, this court found the prosecutor's instructions to the jury to "speak the truth" and return a

verdict "speak[ing] the truth" improper. 174 Wn.2d at 751, 760. The Court found that describing the jury as truth-seeker mischaracterized its role in the criminal justice system of determining "whether the State has proved the charged offense beyond a reasonable doubt." <u>Id.</u> at 760. Unlike <u>Emery</u>, where the error was harmless because the instructions were not given by the court and the evidence was overwhelming, here the "belief in the truth" language was part of the official jury instructions and, as argued above, the state has not produced overwhelming evidence of Mr. Federov's guilt. <u>Id.</u> at 764 n.14; <u>See supra</u> at 3-8. The "belief in the truth" instruction was improper because it failed to accurately inform the jury of its role and the State's burden of proving its case beyond a reasonable doubt. <u>Emery</u>, 174 Wn.2d at 760; <u>Bennett</u>, 161 Wn.2d at 315-16.

This Court recently reiterated the position it established in <u>Bennett</u> in <u>State v. Lindsay</u>. In <u>Lindsay</u>, this Court again found that a prosecutor's statements to the jury to "find the truth" or "speak the truth" mischaracterized the role of the jury and were improper. 2014 WL 1848454 at *7-8. The Court broadly held that "[t]elling the jury that its job is to "speak the truth," or some variation thereof, misstates the burden of proof and is improper." <u>Id.</u>

F. CONCLUSION

For the reasons stated herein, Mr. Federov requests this Court

accept review of this appeal pursuant to RAP 13.4(b)(2), (3), and (4), reverse his conviction, and remand for a new trial.