I. STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

The facts of the case are adequately set out in the decision 

of the Court of Appeals and the State's response brief. The State 

relies on those sources for the statement of the case. 

II. ARGUMENT 

A. WHETHER THERE WAS SUFFICIENT EVIDENCE TO 
SUPPORT THE CHARGE ON A BASIS NOT ARGUED OR 
DECIDED BY THE COURT OF APPEALS SHOULD NOT BE 
CONSIDERED BY THIS COURT. 

On appeal to the Court of Appeals the defendant argued 

there was insufficient evidence to support his conviction for second 

degree identity theft on the basis that the evidence did not show 

that the person that the defendant claimed to be was a real person. 

Alternatively he argued there was insufficient evidence to prove 

which crime he intended to commit when he gave the officer a false 

name. 

In his petition for review the defendant argues that this Court 

should accept review of the decision of the Court of Appeals 

because it conflicts with another decision of the Court of Appeals, 

State v. Zeferino-Lopez, 179 Wn. App. 592, 319 P.2d 94 (2014), 

RAP 13.4(b )(2). Zeferino-Lopez held that too prove identity theft 

the State must prove the defendant knew the means of 

identification that he used belonged to another person. ld. at 599. 
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The Court of Appeals did not consider whether the evidence was 

sufficient to convict the defendant on this basis. Thus the decision 

of the Court of Appeals is therefore not in conflict with another 

decision of the Court of Appeals. The Court should not accept 

review of the case on the basis of this issue. 

The defendant also relies on the claim that decision of the 

Court of Appeals presents a significant question of law under the 

constitution of the United States or the State of Washington. RAP 

13.4{b )(3). Due process requires that the State bears the burden to 

prove every element of an offense beyond a reasonable doubt. 

State v. Deal, 128 Wn.2d 693, 698, 911 P.2d 996 (1996). Evidence 

is sufficient if after reviewing the facts in the light most favorable to 

the State, any rational trier of fact could have found the essential 

elements of the crime beyond a reasonable doubt. State v. Green, 

94 Wn.2d 216,221-222,616 P.2d 628 (1980). The elements of the 

offense may be proved by either direct or circumstantial evidence. 

State v. Delmarter, 80 Wn.2d 634, 638, 618 P.2d 99 (1980). The 

term 'circumstantial evidence' refers to evidence from which, based 

on common sense and experience, the jury may reasonably infer 

something that is at issue in this case. 11 Wash. Prac., Pattern Jury 

lnstr. Crim. WPIC 5.01 (3d Ed). 
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The law concerning the burden of proof and the sufficiency 

of the evidence to convict a defendant of an offense has long been 

settled. The specific application of these principals to a given fact 

pattern does not raise a significant question of law under either the 

State or Federal constitutions. RAP 13.4(b)(3). Nor does it involve 

an issue of substantial public interest that this Court should review. 

RAP 13.4(b )( 4 ). 

In addition, under the facts of this case there was sufficient 

evidence for a rational trier of fact to find the defendant guilty of the 

charge. There is a real person named Zachary Anderson. The 

defendant gave the officer that name, and a date of birth that 

correctly identified Mr. Anderson's month and year of birth. The 

date of birth was only one day off from Mr. Anderson's true 

birthday. The officer pointed out to the defendant that Mr. 

Anderson had warrants and date of birth for Mr. Anderson, thereby 

giving the defendant the opportunity to correct his statement that 

his date of birth was in fact August 30, 1984 rather than August 31, 

1984. The officer obtained Mr. Anderson's photograph when 

investigating whether the defendant was Zachary Anderson. 

Accounting for the time that had passed between the when the 
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photo was taken and when the stop was made the officer believed 

that the defendant could be Mr. Anderson. RP 105-112, 129-131. 

From this information a rational trier of fact could conclude 

that the defendant not only knew that there was a person name 

Zachary Anderson, but also that he was acquainted with that 

person. The slight difference between the date of birth the 

defendant gave and Mr. Anderson's true date of birth makes no 

difference in this analysis because someone who is only 

acquainted with another may easily make that minor error. Further, 

the defendant was specifically informed that there was a real 

Zachary Anderson born August 30, 1984 by the officer. Despite 

that the defendant insisted that he was Zachary Anderson, 

ultimately conceding that Mr. Anderson's true date of birth was in 

fact his. The facts are sufficient to prove that the defendant knew 

he was using the identification of another person when he claimed 

to be Mr. Anderson. 

B. THE ADDITIONAL ISSUES RAISED BY THE DEFENDANT IN 
HIS PETITION DO NOT MEET THE CRITERIA FOR REVIEW 
UNDER RAP 13.4(B)(2),(3), OR (4). 

The defendant asks this Court to accept review of three 

additional issues that he did raise in the Court of Appeals. First he 

asks the court to review the Court of Appeals' decision that there 
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was sufficient evidence to prove that the defendant provided the 

name of a real person to support his conviction for second degree 

identity theft. Second he argue that the Court should review 

whether a specific named offense is an essential element of second 

degree identity theft that should be included in the "to convict" 

instruction. Third, he argues this Court should review whether the 

reasonable doubt instruction is a correct statement of the law. 

The State relies on its brief filed in the Court of Appeals and 

the decision of the Court of Appeals as a basis on which to 

conclude that none of these issues justifies relief under RAP 

13.4(b). 

Ill. CONCLUSION 

For the foregoing reason the State asks the Court to deny 

the petition for review. 

Respectfully submitted on July 30, 2014. 

MARK K. ROE 
Snohomish County Prosecuting Attorney 

By: I~ .E~ 12 .vu t.(_J L Lt.-<..__ 
KATHLEEN WEBBER WSBA #16040 

3-tzf u,().. e 'w'llx./{ Deputy Prosecuting Attorney 
,,,,,,, ,,; '" ''"· '·''": :y ,,;,,";;.··d--ewt-etJp.·,Attorney for Respondent